
1800 12th Street | PO Box 2004 | Cayce SC 29171 
P 803 796 9020 | F 803 796 9072 

caycesc.gov 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Cayce 
Regular Council Meeting 

Wednesday, January 21, 2026 
5:00 p.m. – Cayce City Hall – 1800 12th Street 

www.caycesc.gov  
 

To Access Council Meeting Livestream, click 
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams 

 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 
I. Call to Order 

 
A. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

 
B. Approval of Minutes 

December 2, 2025, Regular Council Meeting 
 

C.        Chief A. G. Dantzler Celebration of Life    
 

II. Public Comment Regarding Items on the Agenda 
    

III.          Ordinances   
 

A.        Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2026-01 Amending the Zoning Map   
 and Rezoning Property Located at 1109 F Avenue (Tax Map Number 004634- 
      07-004) from C-1 to RS-3 – Second Reading 
 

B. Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2026-02 Amending the Zoning Map 
 and Rezoning Property Located Near the Intersection of Dunbar Road and  
 Millen Street, Abutting 1401 Dunbar Road (Tax Map Number 005766-03- 
 008) from M-1 to RG-2 – Second Reading    

   
IV. Committee Matters 
 

A.      Appointments 
           Cayce Museum and Historical Commission – One (1) Position 
 
B.        Discussion and Approval of Waiver of Attendance Policy for Museum and  
           Historical Commissioner 
  

    V. City Manager’s Report 
 

  VI. Council Comments 
 

Mayor 
Elise Partin 

Mayor Pro-Tem Council Members City Manager  Assistant City  Manager 
          Phil Carter              Tiffany Aull Mike Conley 

            Byron Thomas 
                    Alice Rose 

 Wesley Crosby   
 

http://www.caycesc.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofcayce1137/streams


 VII.           Executive Session 
 
  A.       Receipt of legal advice regarding intergovernmental relations and Council’s  
   participation and representation in the Lexington County Municipal Association 
 
  B.        Discussion of potential economic development project    
    
VIII. Reconvene   
 
IX.  Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL NOTE:  Upon request, the City of Cayce will provide this document in 
whatever form necessary for the physically challenged or impaired. 



ITEM I. B. 





City of Cayce 
Minutes of 12/2/2025 Regular Council Meeting 
Page3 

Mayor Pro Tern Carter made a motion to give approval for the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement with Samsara to provide vehicle trackers and software for the 
City's fleet. Council Member Thomas seconded the motion which was unanimously 
approved by roll call vote. 

C. Discussion and Approval of Proposal Award for the 12,000 Year History
Park Visitors Center Site and Construction Request for Proposals (RFQ)

Council Member Thomas made a motion to award the construction bid to Boyer 
Commercial Construction and the base bid amount of $4,353,834.02 and authorize the 
City Manager to execute the construction contract with the funding coming from the 
previously allocated funds dedicated to the 12,000 Year History Park project. Council 
Member Rose seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by roll call vote. 

D. Discussion and Approval of Contract Award for Water Treatment Plant
Advanced Treatment Study

Council Member Aull made a motion to approve the proposal from American 
Engineering and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute the contract with 
the project being funded through the SRF principal forgiveness fund. Council Member 
Thomas seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by roll call vote. 

E. Discussion and Approval to Ratify an Agreement Approved by the City
Manager, Under the Emergency Powers of Sec. 2-146, with G.H. Smith
Construction, Inc. and Carolina Paving & Grading, LLC, for the Emergency
Repair of a Sewer Main Failure

Mayor Pro Tern Carter made a motion to ratify an agreement approved by the 
City Manager under the emergency powers of Section 2-146, with G. H. Smith 
Construction, Incorporated for $51,890 for the repair work and Carolina Paving and 
Grading, LLC, for $32,513 for the asphalt repair for the emergency repair of a sewer 
main failure. Council Member Thomas seconded the motion which was unanimously 
approved by roll call vote. 

Ordinances 

A. Discussion and Approval of Ordinance 2025-09 Annexing Portion { 1.86
acres) of Property Located at or near Charleston Highway and 2121 Old
Dunbar Road (Tax Map Number 006896-01-002) into the City Limits
Under the Provisions of South Carolina Code Section 5-3-150 (3) -
Second Reading

Mayor Pro Tern Carter made a motion to approve on Second Reading an 
Ordinance to annex property near 2490 Charleston Highway and 2121 Old Dunbar 











Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council 

Michael Conley, City Manager 

January 21, 2026 

Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone property at 1109 F Avenue (Tax 
Map Number 004634-07-004) from C-1 to RS-3 

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone the property 
located at 1109 F Avenue (Tax Map Number 004634-07-004) from C-1 (Office and Institutional 
Commercial District) to RS-3 (Single-Family Residential District). 

Discussion 
The property owner has requested rezoning of 1109 F Avenue from C-1  to RS-3 so that the 
property’s existing single family residential structure aligns with the proper zoning designation 
for the property. 

The subject property is located within an area characterized by a mix of RS-3 and C-1 zoning 
districts. The C-1 zoning is more appropriate for properties along 12th Street, but its application 
along F Avenue does not reflect the residential character of the surrounding neighborhood. 

The property is designated as RC (Residential/Conservation Infill) on the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM). The RC land use category is intended to protect existing single-family residential and 
encourage residential infill development.  

The FLUM serves as a long-range planning guide for evaluating zoning, development, and public 
investment decisions. The FLUM illustrates general land use patterns and should be utilized 
along with the Comprehensive Plan’s goals, policies, and objectives.  

The proposed RS-3 zoning district aligns with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan.  Based on 
these considerations, staff finds the rezoning request to comply with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Recommendation 
The Planning Commission unanimously recommends that City Council approve the rezoning of 
1109 F Avenue from C-1 to RS-3. The Commission noted its support for updating C-1 zoning 
designations in the area where such zoning does not reflect existing or intended uses. 

ITEM III. A. 



1 

WHEREAS, the Owner/Applicant requested that the City of Cayce amend the 
Zoning Map to re-designate the property comprising and shown at 1109 F Avenue, with 
Tax Map Number 004634-07-004, from C-1 (Office and Institutional) to RS-3 (Single-
Family Residential), and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to 
receive comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on December 15, 2025, to receive 
public comments and vote on whether to recommend the rezoning request, and has 
decided by a unanimous vote that it does recommend this change to the existing zoning, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that the property hereinafter listed, and as shown on 
the attached sketch, is hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of 
Cayce as RS-3: 

Tax Map Number 004634-07-004 
1109 F Avenue 

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2026. 

    ______________________________ 
    Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      James Smith, City Attorney 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA       ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

ORDINANCE 2026-01 
Amending the Zoning Map and 
Rezoning Property Located at 1109 F 
Avenue (Tax Map Number 004634-07-
004) from C-1 to RS-3

ITEM III. A. 



ITEM III. A. 







Rezoning Request 1109 F Avenue

Address Points

Existing

Roads

Arterial

Local

Parcels

Cayce Zoning

RS-3  Single Family, Small Lots

C-1  Office / Institutional

C-3  Central Commercial

12/7/2025, 11:22:40 PM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.06 0.110.03 km

1:2,000

Printed from Lexington County One Map. Lexington County makes no warranty, representation or guaranty... View the full data disclaimer at https://lex-co.sc.gov/departments/planning-gis/gis-

R e z o n i n g
R e q u e s t

ITEM III. A. 



Transition

Residential Conservation and Infill

Rezoning Request

F Ave

12th St
Bru

ce 
Rd

Garden Ave

Moss RdEvergreen Ave

Guignard Ave

F A
ve

nu
e C

t

Transition

Residential Conservation and Infill

Commercial - Business/Retail

Residential Conservation and Infill

MA005-25
1109 F Ave

Re-Zoning Request
Future Land Use Map

±200 0 200100 Feet

Legend
Land Use Categories

RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION AND INFILL

TRANSITION AREA

ITEM III. A. 



City of Cayce: Single-Family Residential Zoning Districts 

The City of Cayce has five types of Single-Family Residential zoned districts: RS-1, RS-2, 
RS-3, RS-4, and RS-4A. 

RS-1: Single-Family, Large Lots 
Minimum lot size: 12,000 square feet 
Required street frontage: 80 feet 
Single-Family detached houses are permitted outright 
Duplex not permitted 
Townhouses are not permitted 
Patio Homes may be approved by Special Exception 
Triplex, Quadraplex, or Multi-Family dwellings are not permitted 

RS-2: Single-Family, Medium Lots 
Minimum lot size: 9,450 square feet 
Required street frontage: 70 feet 
Single-Family detached houses are permitted outright 
Duplex not permitted 
Townhouses are not permitted 
Patio Homes may be approved by Special Exception 
Triplex, Quadraplex, or Multi-Family dwellings are not permitted 

RS-3: Single-Family, Small Lots  
RS-3 makes up the majority of residential parcels in the city 
Minimum lot size: 7,200 square feet 
Required street frontage: 60 feet 
Single-Family detached houses are permitted outright 
Duplex not permitted 
Townhouses are not permitted 
Patio Homes may be approved by Special Exception 
Triplex, Quadraplex, or Multi-Family dwellings are not permitted 

RS-4 and RS-4A: Single-Family Small Lots and Urban Single-Family Small Lots 
Minimum lot size is based on type of use; 

• Single-family Detached: 5,000 Sq. Ft.
• Duplex Units: 7,500 Sq. Ft.

Required street frontage: 50 feet for single-family detached home or duplex 
Single-Family detached houses are permitted outright  
Accessory apartments may be permitted with conditions in RS-4A 
Duplex is permitted outright 
Townhouses are permitted with conditions 
Patio Homes are permitted with conditions 
Triplex, Quadraplex, or Multi-Family dwellings are not permitted 

General Notes: 
Only one single-family dwelling, duplex, or patio home is allowed on a legal lot-of-record. 
Patio Home: A single-family detached unit that is placed against at least one of the side lot 
lines, rather than centered on the lot. It is synonymous with zero lot-line housing. 
Special Exceptions: Special Exception requests are heard at a public hearing by the Board of 
Zoning Appeals. The Board of Zoning Appeals will vote on standards and conditions for special 
exceptions that may relate to access, noise, screening, lighting, compatibility with adjoining uses 
and traffic generation. Conditional Uses: These are approved by city staff, based on the 
conditions outlined in the zoning ordinance. 

ITEM III. A. 



Memorandum
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Mayor and Council 

Michael Conley, City Manager 

January 21, 2026 

Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone property near the corner of Millen 
Street and Dunbar Road, abutting 1401 Dunbar Road (Tax Map Number 
5766-03-008) from M-1 to RG-2 

Issue 
Council approval is needed for the Second Reading of an Ordinance to rezone the property 
located near the corner of Millen Street and Dunbar Road, abutting 1401 Dunbar Road (Tax 
Map Number 5766-03-008), from M-1 (Light Industrial) to RG-2 (General Residential). 

Discussion 
The property owner has requested rezoning to RG-2 to allow for residential use. The subject 
property is located in an area with a mix of M-1, RG-2, and C-1 zoning districts, reflecting 
industrial, residential, and commercial uses. 

The property is designated as Commercial Business and Industrial Areas (CBI) on the Future 
Land Use Map (FLUM). The FLUM is a long-term planning guide that shows general land use 
patterns and helps evaluate zoning, development, and public investments. It should be utilized 
in conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan. 

The RG-2 zoning designation is not fully aligned with the Commercial Business and Industrial 
(CBI) land use category, but the property is near the boundary of the Residential Density Flex 
(RD) classification, which lists RG-2 as a compatible zoning district. Future land use boundaries 
are intended to show transition areas. They may change over time in response to infrastructure 
projects, development pressures, economic trends, or population shifts. 

Staff finds the requested RG-2 zoning to be consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive 
Plan, given the property’s location near the RD boundary and the surrounding mix of uses.  

Recommendation 
The Planning Commission unanimously recommends that City Council approve the rezoning of 
the property from M-1 to RG-2. 

ITEM III. B. 



1 

WHEREAS, the Owner/Applicant requested that the City of Cayce amend the 
Zoning Map to re-designate the subject property located near the intersection of Dunbar 
Road and Millen Street, abutting 1401 Dunbar Road and. (Tax Map Number 005766-03-
008), from M-1 (Light Industrial) to RG-2 (General Residential), and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this request to 
receive comments from the public and adjacent property owners, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met on December 15, 2025, to receive 
public comments and vote on whether to recommend the rezoning request, and has 
decided by a unanimous vote that it does recommend this change to the existing zoning, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Cayce, in Council, duly assembled, that the property hereinafter listed, and as shown on 
the attached sketch, is hereby rezoned and reclassified on the Zoning Map of the City of 
Cayce as RG-2: 

Tax Map Number 005766-03-008 
Intersection of Dunbar Road and Millen Street, Abutting 1401 Dunbar Road 

This Ordinance shall be effective from the date of second reading approval by 
Council. 

DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ______ day of _________2026. 

    ______________________________ 
    Elise Partin, Mayor 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Mendy Corder, CMC, Municipal Clerk 

First Reading: _____________________ 

Second Reading and Adoption: ____________ 

Approved as to form:     __________________________ 
      James Smith, City Attorney 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA       ) 
) 

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON  ) 
) 

CITY OF CAYCE   ) 

ORDINANCE 2026-02 
Amending the Zoning Map and 
Rezoning Property Located  Near the 
Intersection of Dunbar Road and 
Millen Street, Abutting 1401 Dunbar 
Road (Tax Map Number 005766-03-
008) from M-1 to RG-2

ITEM III. B. 



ITEM III. B. 







Rezoning Request

R e z o n i n g  -  D u n b a r  R d  a n d  M i l l e n  S t

Address Points

Existing

To Be Placed

Roads

Arterial

Local

Parcels

Cayce Zoning

RS-4  Single Family, Small Lots

RG-2  General Residential, High Rise

C-1  Office / Institutional

M-1 Light Industrial

12/31/2025, 3:15:19 PM
0 0.01 0.030.01 mi

0 0.03 0.050.01 km

1:1,000

Printed from Lexington County One Map. Lexington County makes no warranty, representation or guaranty... View the full data disclaimer at https://lex-co.sc.gov/departments/planning-gis/gis-

ITEM III. B. 



REZONING 
REQUEST

Residential 'Density-Flex'

RD

Residential 'Density-Flex'

RD

Commercial - Business/Industrial

CBI

Dunbar Rd

Millen St

Ann Ln

MA006-25
Dunbar Road

Re-Zoning Request
Future Land Use Map

±100 0 10050 Feet

Legend
Land Use Categories

CBI

RD

TA

ITEM III. B. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

January 21, 2026

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

MUSEUM AND HISTORICAL COMMISSION – ONE (1) POSITION  
Mr. Campbell Mims recently resigned from the Museum Commission and the City has received a 
potential member application from Ms. Kasey Lawson.  Her application is attached for Council’s 
review.   

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED  
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member applications.  

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
One of these positions must work in the lodging community within the City.  The other two (2) 
positions can be filled by anyone.  This committee advises City Council on the expenditure of local 
accommodations tax funds for the purpose of promoting tourism, the arts and cultural affairs in the 
community.    

EVENTS COMMITTEE – FOUR (4) POSITIONS 
This committee is actively involved in working with City staff to plan and coordinate City events and 
works the events with staff. 

STANDARD TECHNICAL CODES BOARD OF APPEALS – TWO (2) POSITIONS   
This Board rarely meets but is required by State law.  The Board reviews citizen appeals to ensure 
building ordinances are properly interpreted and implemented fairly.  Members who serve on this 
Board must be either an Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design Professional.        

APPOINTMENT PROCESS 

Cayce citizens have an opportunity to actively participate in the City through their services on a 
number of advisory boards, commissions, foundations and committees. These groups help shape 
and carry out policy. 

Applications are accepted at any time for all City of Cayce boards, commissions, foundations and 
committees.  Cayce citizens wishing to apply for appointment may submit a potential member 
application to the Municipal Clerk, P. O. Box 2004, Cayce, SC 29171. More information and a copy 
of the application can be found on our website at caycesc.gov or by calling City Hall at 803-796-
9020. 

City Council considers received applications at a meeting immediately following an opening. 

ITEM IV. A. 



City of Cayce Potential Member Application
Application for committees, boards and commissions within the City of Cayce

Date
1/9/2026

Name
Kasey Lawson

Home Address
 WELLINGTON RD, Cayce 29033

Phone Email

Are you a resident of Cayce?
Yes

Number of Years
1

Do you have a business in Cayce?
No

Number of Years

On which Board, Commission or Foundation are you interested in serving*? Information on each 
can be found at caycesc.boards.
Museum Commission

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor other than a minor traffic violation?
No

If yes, specify below:

The applicant acknowledges that he or she is aware that a City of Cayce records check will be 
performed by the Cayce Police Department and that information could be public.
Yes

Work Address
 WELLINGTON RD, Cayce 29033

Phone Email

Work Experience
Currently freelance/independent contractor as well as provide childcare, I also have experience working in 
a local bookshop and years of restaurant experience

Educational Background
BA psychology from Clemson University

ITEM IV. A. 



Membership Information (Professional, Neighborhood and/or Civic Organizations) Volunteer Work 
and/or Hobbies:
Neighborhood representative for Churchill heights neighborhood, hobbies: reading, creating art, gardening, 
gathering community together. Creator of Columbia skillshare group

Please answer the following questions as thoroughly as possible for the indicated comittee:

Why do you want to serve on a City of Cayce Board, Commission or Foundation?
We bought a home in Cayce in May of last year but have lived local to the Columbia area for decades. It is 
important to me to not only participate in community but to work hard to bring community together and 
history has always been an interest and passion of mine. I would love to contribute to our local community 
by serving on the Museum commission.

What specific contributions do you hope to make?
I hope to bring the insight of a homeschool parent to the commission as well as to form connections and 
help build community and help with community events.

 What community topics concern you that relate to this Board, Commission or Foundation? 
I think that learning about and preserving our unique history is incredibly important and that community 
members can and should be an integral part of this. When we care about something, we want to protect it.

What experience/training do you have for this particular Board?
I have always been passionate about history and learning and enjoy historical hands on activities. 
Wandering a museum is one of my favorite past times. I have a deep interest in helping to preserve the 
history of our area.

 For additional information please contact Mendy Corder at 803-550-9557 or email 
mcorder@caycesc.gov



Memorandum
________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council  

From: Michael Conley, City Manager 

Date: January 21, 2026 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of Waiver of the Attendance Policy for Museum 
and Historical Commission   

________________________________________________________________ 

Issue 
Council approval is needed to authorize a waiver of the boards and commission 
attendance policy for a Museum and Historical Commission member.    

Discussion 
The City has a policy on attendance requirements for board and commission members 
appointed by Council to boards, commissions and foundations.  It reads that “Council 
may, in its discretion, waive enforcement of the attendance requirements in the case 
of illness, death of a family member, court appearance, or other similar circumstances 
beyond the control of the member.” 

Ms. Charlita Earle, a member of the Cayce Museum and Historical Commission since 
2021 and a member of the African American Sub-Committee, asked Council to consider 
a waiver of the policy from September through December 2025 so she could complete 
her coursework for her graduate degree.  Council did approve the waiver but Ms. Earle 
did not enroll that semester so the leave of absence was not necessary.  She did attend 
the Museum Commission meetings regularly during that time.   

Ms. Earle has successfully enrolled for the 2026 Fall semester and is asking Council to 
consider a waiver of the policy from September through December 2026.  She is 
proactively seeking this approval to avoid any policy violations while she is away. She 
remains committed to her role and does not wish to resign, intending to resume her full 
participation once her studies are complete. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends City Council waive the attendance policy for four (4) months for Ms. 
Earle as requested.   

ITEM IV. B. 


	Agenda
	Item I. B. - December 2, 2025, Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Item III. A. - White Paper Rezoning 1109 F Avenue
	Item III. A. - Ordinance Rezoning 1109 F Ave from C-1 to RS-3
	Item III. A. - Application 1109 F Ave
	Item III. A. - Rezoning Request 1109 F Ave
	Item III. A. - Future Land Use Map 1109 F Ave
	Item III. A. - Residential Zoning District Descriptions
	Item III. B. - White Paper Rezoning Millen St and Dunbar Rd
	Item III. B. - Ordinance Rezoning Millen at Dunbar M-1 to RG-2
	Item III. B. - Application Dunbar Road
	Item III. B. - Rezoning Request Dunbar Rd
	Item III. B. - Future Land Use Map Dunbar at Millen St
	Item IV. A. - Appts and Reappts Report
	Item IV. A - City of Cayce Potential Member Application - 43_Redacted
	Item IV. B. - White Paper Waiver of Committee Attendance Policy



